
From 1 May 2021, the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 sets out a 
statutory requirement that: As soon as reasonably practicable after a meeting of a 
community council, and in any event before the end of seven working days beginning 
with the day on which the meeting is held, the council must publish electronically a note 
setting out—  
 
(a)the names of the members who attended the meeting, and any apologies for 
absence;  
(b)any declarations of interest;  
(c)any decision taken at the meeting, including the outcomes of any votes.  
 
Barry Town Council meets this duty by publishing this information in the form of draft 
meeting minutes which will be displayed electronically within 7 working days after the 
meeting. It should be noted that these minutes are DRAFT and not agreed until the next 
meeting.  

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD ON MONDAY 12 FEBRUARY 
2024 AT 7PM  
 

PRESENT: The Mayor (Councillor Johnson) together with Councillors Aviet, Ball, 
Brooks, Clarke, Collins, Drake, EJ Goodjohn, ES Goodjohn, Hennessy, 
N Hodges, S Hodges, Iannucci, McKinney, Payne, Perkes, Thomas, 
Wiliam and Wilkinson 

 

ALSO PRESENT: Mark Sims  Deputy Chief Officer  
Lyndsey Thomas  Administrator 
Emma Thorne  Engagement & Events Officer 
Amanda Webb Wellbeing Goals Officer 
Courtney Parker Administrator  

 
320.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies were received from Councillors Charles, Dancey and 
Davies-Powell. 

 

321. TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST UNDER THE 
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
Councillor Drake declared an interest in agenda item 20 as she is a 
member of the Vale of Glamorgan Council’s Welsh Church Act Estate 
Committee. 
 

322. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015 
 

RESOLVED: That the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 be noted. 
 
 
 

 



323. TO APPROVE AND SIGN THE MINUTES OF THE FULL COUNCIL 
MEETING HELD ON MONDAY 11 DECEMBER 2023 

 
 Councillor Johnson wished a welcome back to the Chief Officer on 

behalf of the Council. 
 

Councillor S Hodges added that the Council would like to thank the 
Locum Chief Officer for her help over a difficult time.  Council members 
agreed. 

 
 RESOLVED:  
 

a) That the minutes of the meeting Full Council held on Monday 
11 December 2023 be approved and signed as a correct record. 
 

b) That a letter of thanks be sent to the Locum Chief Officer for 
her help during the Chief Officer’s absence. 
 
 
 

324.  TO RECEIVE COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR  
 
 The Mayor provided members with an update of the events he had 

attended. The Mayor advised that he had attended the Christmas 
Candle Lighting event at the Cemetery Chapel which raised 
approximately £350.   

  
 The Mayor thanked Councillor N Hodges for setting the quiz at Craft 

Republic which raised £312. 
 
 The Mayor also attended the Vale of Glamorgan Friends Christmas 

and New Year Celebration which he said was a lovely event. 
   

The Mayor advised members of upcoming events including the 
Freedom of the town ceremony, future fundraising events and the 
Mayors Ball. 

    
 RESOLVED: That communications from the Mayor be received 

and noted. 
 
 
325. TO CONSIDER QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS (STANDING 

ORDER 3 (E)  
 

None were received. 
 

326. TO CONSIDER QUESTIONS/COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF 
THE PUBLIC (STANDING ORDER 3 (F) 

 

None were received. 



 
 
327. TO CONSIDER MOTIONS SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLORS 
 
 None were received. 
 
328.  TO RECEIVE AND NOTE THE MINUTES OF THE PLANNING 

COMMITTEE HELD ON 12 DECEMBER 2023, 9 JANUARY 2024 
AND 30 JANUARY 2024 

  
 RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Planning Committee 

meetings held on 12 December 2023, 9 January 2024 and 30 
January be received and noted.  

 
  

Members were advised that discussion of the minutes of the Personnel 
Committee meeting should be moved to part two of the meeting.   

 
 
329.  TO RECEIVE AND NOTE THE MINUTES OF THE FINANCE, POLICY 

AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE HELD ON 29 JANUARY 
2024  

 
 RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Finance, Policy and General 

Purposes Committee meeting held on 29 January 2024 be 
received and noted. 
 

330.  TO RECEIVE AND NOTE THE MINUTES OF THE HALLS, 
CEMETERIES AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES COMMITTEE HELD 
ON 22 JANUARY 2024  

 
 Councillor N Hodges commented that he was grateful that the Finance, 

Policy and General Purposes Committee had agreed to both of their 
Recommendations.  These being the new unauthorised ashes 
scattering policy and the purchase of a new electric vehicle for the 
Cemetery. 

  
 He added that the Committee will soon be looking to bring in a policy 

regarding filming on Barry Town Council owned land following an 
enquiry from a musical band wanting to film at Merthyr Dyfan 
Cemetery. 

 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Halls, Cemeteries and 
Community Facilities Committee meeting held on 22 January 2024 
be received and noted. 

 
 
 
 



331. TO RECEIVE RESULTS OF THE PUBLIC CONSULTATION ON 2024 
BUDGET PROPOSALS 

 
 Members were provided with a report showing the results of the online 

survey completed by fourteen participants regarding the 2024 budget. 
Of the 14 respondents; two were happy, seven were not and 5 said 
they were happy only if the Council increased services. 

 
 Councillor Brooks noted the report and commented that usually in such 

surveys a lot of comments actually refer to the Vale of Glamorgan 
Council and their responsibilities and as such advised members to take 
it at face value. 

 
 Councillor S Hodges agreed and added that maybe an attempt should 

be made to engage more with the public. 
 
 The Engagement and Events Officer informed members that this year’s 

approach to the public consultation had been changed from previous, 
including modernised visuals and the use of social media and QR 
codes. 

 
 Councillor ES Goodjohn addressed the comment in the report that the 

public did not want an increase to be spent on councillor’s pay rises or 
expenses, and confirmed that any rise was not for these purposes. 

 
RESOLVED: That the results of the Public Consultation on 2024 
Budget Proposals be received and noted. 
 

332.   MAYOR’S REPLICA CHAIN 
 

Members were provided with a report explaining costs involved with the 
current method of issuing Mayor Medals to past Mayors at the end of 
their term.  The report suggested some alternatives with cost 
breakdowns for the Council to discuss. 
 
Councillor Brooks commented that she felt that there was not enough 
information provided to make a decision.  She suggested that she 
would like the Council to have a forensic look to see what the options 
were as she didn’t think Council should automatically pick the cheapest 
option. 
 
The Mayor stated that the matter had previously been referred to the 
Finance, Policy and General Purposes Committee and as such he was 
unsure as to why it was being considered by Full Council. 
 
Councillor Brooks recommended that the matter be deferred to a 
meeting of the Finance, Policy and General Purposes Committee or a 
Working Party once they are re-established. 
 



Councillor S Hodges added that the Council need to consider their civic 
responsibility with all regalia and suggested that members could 
consider awarding a replica badge to someone who is awarded 
Freedom of the Town. 
 
The Wellbeing Goals Officer informed members that all regalia had 
been examined in the last month and that a full report was pending. 
 
Councillor Wilkinson asked whether members who have already 
received a past Mayor medal will be able to vote on the matter. 
 
The Mayor replied that the decision effects all members of the Council 
and as such all members can contribute to the decision, the decision at 
this time is to defer. 
 
The Deputy Chief Officer stated that if the matter was viewed as 
important then an Extra-Ordinary meeting of the Finance, Policy and 
General Purposes Committee could be called. 
 
Councillor Brooks commented that it was more important to take the 
time to make the right decision as the medals form a part of Barry 
Town Council history and consider this matter at a meeting of the 
Innovation Working Party following conclusion of the Governance 
Arrangements Review that is being reported to the next meeting of Full 
Council in April. 
 
RESOLVED: That more information be obtained and presented to 
a future meeting of the Innovation Working Party. 
 
 

333.   BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 31 JANUARY 2024 
 

Members were provided with a report outlining the Council’s income 
and expenditure in the 2023/24 financial year as at the end of January 
2024.  
 
RESOLVED: That the budget monitoring report to 31 January 2024 
indicating actual income and expenditure up to the end of month 
ten in the 2023/24 financial year, be received and noted with the 
projected underspend of £174,094 for 2023/24 that will result in a 
net amount of £38,197 being transferred from reserves 
 
 

334. TO CONSIDER THE DRAFT 2024/2025 BUDGET TO DETERMINE 
PRECEPT FOR 2024/25 

 
 Councillor Brooks informed members that the draft budget provided a 

better view of where the Council will be by the end of the financial year.   
 



Councillor Brooks said that they were in a much better position than 
they were going to be originally and she wanted to thank all Councillors 
and staff for helping make that possible. 

 
 Councillor Brooks advised that the budget required an increase of  

0.66% to balance the budget for 2024/25, however she added that 
members need to consider the Election Reserve that has a current 
balance of nil.  She warned that any future bill could be significant 
based on the 2022 Election Costs, and that the Council only have three 
years to place money in the Reserve. 

 
 Councillor Brooks proposed that instead of an increase of 0.66%, 

members consider an increase of 1.66% which would allow £12,810 to 
be added to the Election Reserve.  She informed members that this 
would equate to a £1 a year increase in Council Tax for a Band D rate-
payer. 

 
 Councillor S Hodges commented that the proposal was sensible.  She 

added that an 0% increase is always desirable but as the population 
grows the Council need to obtain funds for services.  She suggested 
that it might be worthwhile Officers contact the Vale of Glamorgan 
Council to gauge what the projected election costs for 2027 might be 
so that there is time to prepare. 

 
 Councillor Hennessy stated that the Conservative Party’s policy is for 

no increase to the Precept and as such he will vote against the 
proposed 1.66% increase. 

 
Councillor S Hodges replied that traditionally the Conservatives have 
suggested for half the increase that is proposed. 
 
The Mayor summarised that the figures in the report are the same as 
the costs for the Council except an increase of 1.66% generates an 
additional amount of £12,810 that will be added to the Election Reserve 
to go towards the 2027 Election Costs.  
 
Councillor Thomas added that members are not here for party politics, 
they are here to help the community. 
 
A vote was cast, the results were; 
For – 17 Councillors 
Against – 1 Councillor 
Abstained – 1 Councillor 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
1. That the draft budget for 2024/25 be agreed, with the addition 

of including an amount of £12,810 being added to the Election 
Reserve, that sets a precept requirement of £1,297,012 being 
an increase to a Band D tax payer of 1.66% 



 
2. That officers contact the Vale of Glamorgan Council to request 

an estimate of the potential future election costs for 2027. 
 

 
335.  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
  

RESOLVED: That the next meeting of Full Council is scheduled to 
be held on Monday 15 April 2024, with an Extraordinary meeting 
of Full Council being held on 26 February 2024 to consider a 
Freedom of Town nomination. 
 

 
336.  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS & PUBLIC 
 
 RESOLVED: That in accordance with section 1 (2) of the Public 

Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, in view of the 
confidential nature of the business about to be transacted, it is 
advisable in the public interest that the press and public are 
excluded from the remainder of the meeting. 

 
 
337. TO RECEIVE AN UPDATE REPORT ON DATA FROM CHRISTMAS 

EVENTS AND FUTURE EVENTS PLANNED 
 
Members were provided with a report providing feedback on the 
Christmas event for 2023 and outlining the upcoming events that are 
planned across 2024. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Christmas feedback and upcoming event 
dates be received and noted. 
 

338. TO RECEIVE AND NOTE THE MINUTES OF THE PERSONNEL 
COMMITTEE HELD ON 5 FEBRUARY 2024 AND GIVE 
CONSIDERATION TO ANY RECOMMENDATIONS THEREIN 

 
 Members received the minutes of the Personnel Committee held on 5 

February 2024 
 

RESOLVED:   
 
1. That the minutes of the Personnel Committee meeting held on 

5 February 2024 be received and noted. 
 

2. That payment of additional hours for the staff member be 
agreed (minute R127(2) refers). 

 
 
Councillor Drake left the meeting at 8:02pm 
 



 
339. CADOXTON COMMUNITY ORCHARD UPDATE 
 
 Members were provided with a report suggesting that the Cadoxton 

Community Orchard may be unsuitable for the intended purpose of a 
community garden.  

 
  

RESOLVED:  
 

1. That Councillor Clarke will share the land registry information 
he has obtained with the team. 

 
2. That the Engagement and Events Manager writes to the Vale of 

Glamorgan Council to address Barry Town Council’s concerns 
and refers back to a future meeting of the Hall, Cemeteries and 
Community Facilities Committee when a response is received. 

 
 
The meeting closed at 8.18pm   
 
 
Signed …………………………………   Dated …………………………….……… 

(Town Mayor) 


